
Minutes of the Chaffee County Visitors Bureau meeting held January 26, 2016. Meeting was held at 
the City Council Chambers at the Touber building in Salida. Meeting called to order, 3:06p 
 

Members present: Beatrice Price, Lori Roberts, Rand Stroud, Brandon Slate,  
Bill Dvorak, Kathi Perry Michael Varnum, and Dick Ziminski 
 

Staff Present: Scott Peterson, Marketing Director 
 
Guests Present: Merle Baranczyk - Arkansas Valley Publishing, Monty Holmes – Captain Zipline, 
Amanda Krost – Mount Princeton Hot Springs 
 

Michael Varnum made note of correction in minutes. Asked that in his report, SPA, be changed to 
SBA. Brandon moved to approve the amended minutes of the Dec.1, 2015 as corrected. Randy 
Stroud seconded and motion carried unanimously. 
 
Merle Baranczyk – gave report on New Year’s special additions. Bike Guide out soon, Fishing Guide 
already out. The paper conducted a survey, to their current advertisers about the visitors guide, and 
to date have gotten 15 responses back.  
 
James Niehues Painting: 
 
Mr. Peterson – It has come out amazing. He wants to know how, we as a board want to use the 
piece. In order to get feedback, Scott reached out on Facebook to see if anything was missing on 
the piece. Reached were, 17,117 people with 355 likes and 69 shares.  
All positive comments. Many asked where they could buy the production.  Options for the use, keep 
large prints rare to use for fundraisers, offer file to non-profits to sell at silent auctions. The current 
piece could be expanded on via layer images with trails, scenic byway landmarks (layered process, 
like a transparency online.  
 
Mr. Dvorak – Wouldn’t it be difficult to sell and market? Should the opportunity go to GARNA, or 
AHRA?  
 
Mr. Stroud – Should the chambers sell them? 
 
Ms. Roberts – At the chamber, we do our best to send our guests to our member businesses to 
purchase such items. Get them in their doors. 
 
Mr. Peterson – I am asking for guidance, but best way may be to subcontract the overlays, put out to 
bid to license the piece and the Visitors Bureau gets x amount of dollars. He knows of three 
companies that he could investigate and report back regarding. 
 
Mr. Dvorak – Might be best to have a committee to review ideas. Those, along with Scott were, Bill 
Dvorak, Lori Roberts, and Brandon Slate.  TBA for meeting regarding. 
 
2017 Visitors Guide – Survey: 
 
Committee comprised of Bill Dvorak, Lori Roberts, Michael Varnum and Beatrice Price. Group came 
up with survey questions which were emailed out for review. 
 
Mr. Stroud found the whole process a bit odd, considering that the visitors guide is an advertising 



piece in itself. 
 
Mr. Holmes wondered if the visitor guide would be a piece that only went out of county.  
 
Mr. Peterson commented that the visitors guide would be a lure piece for outside the county, and 
Merle could have a local piece with advertisers.  In addition the lure piece would drive people to the 
website via advertorials.  Scott gave an example of Sunset Magazine design with no ads that has 
the look and feel of an advertorial, but doesn’t feel like ads.  There is a personality via the images. 
 
Mr. Dvorak questions what we want. Do we send out what has been presented? 
 
Mr. Baranczyk commented that they had already sent out their survey to all of their advertisers and 
to date have had 15 responses. 
 
Mr. Peterson said he would distribute survey via both chambers of commerce. 
 
Ms. Price made a motion to have survey sent out via both chambers, and have results ready by mid-
February.   
 
Mr. Peterson stated that he wants to have the results by the next meeting because he has $75,000 
tied up in holding for funding for the visitors guide. 
 
Ms. Perry seconds the motion 
 
Mr. Holmes wondered if we could send out examples of an existing guide that looked like what we 
have been speaking about. 
 
Mr. Peterson said he would work in providing those links for the survey, which would show examples 
of formatted ads such as those found in Crested Buttes and Gunnison visitor guides. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Mr. Holmes commented that he our like to see an advertiser’s index be brought back in the guide. 
 
Mr. Dvorak said, so noted. 
 
Funding Colorado Tourism Office Brazil Media FAM April 25-29: 
 
Mr. Peterson said that we were approached to help fund lodging for one night and for 2 meals, 
dinner and breakfast.  Mt. Princeton offered to donate the lodging for the night of April 28, a value of 
$1,200.   
 
 
Mr. Dvorak thought we could sponsor one meal in Salida, possibly dinner, host the breakfast meal at 
Mt. Princeton, and then have group go to BV for a river walk tour.  
 
Mr. Peterson commented that Mike at Amicas is always great to work with and could approach him 
about dinner service. 
 
Mr. Varnum asked the question again if we want to sponsor 2 meals for 8 persons in the tour group, 
plus any participating Visitor Bureau board attendees.  
 
Mr. Slate made a motion to approve funding for the meals. 



 
Mr. Peterson asked to amend the original request to cover 2 meals, but to cover the potential for 3 
meals because at this point, the itinerary for the group is not set and we do not know how much time 
will be allotted for the visit.  
 
Randy seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Supporting the Salida & Buena Vista Chamber of Commerce’s: 
 
Mr. Peterson – Jenny Davis, Chaffee County Attorney said that lodging tax must be used to 
“advertise and market tourism.” It can’t be used for “capital expenditures, with the exceptions of 
tourist information centers.” 
 
Mr. Peterson added that he feel the CCVB should concentrate on spending funds outside the county 
to bring people here. 
 
Mr. Dvorak suggested that if the chambers want specific support, they submit proposals to the board 
for approval, whether it be a web upgrade, or related item which would drive traffic back to the 
county. 
 
Mr. Peterson shared how already the bureau has supported the chamber of commerce’s.  
Last year the bureau donated $2,000 to each chamber for website upgrade 
Donated $5,000 each for CTO Facebook Coop campaigns driving traffic to websites. 
Purchased listings on Colorado.com 
Purchased event listings on Colorado.com 
Offered Myemma.com Email Program to both chamber to use at no cost to the chambers. 
The future is in remarketing people who visit chamber websites via inserting retargeting codes on 
websites. 
To show how measureable it is, web traffic was up 170.51% in 2015 
That is 137,633 vs 50,880 in 2014 
Additionally, traffic was up from the CTO Facebook Coop with a 31% increase in traffic in 2015 
 
Mr. Slate asked in monies should be invested to integrate the visitors experience once here? 
 
Mr. Stroud commented that the visitor’s centers shouldn’t be so shy with making requests, he 
believes the visitors experience doesn’t end with just getting them here.   
 
Mr. Dvorak asked if we should allocate the budget, or propose funding for the visitor centers. 
 
Ms. Roberts shared that she is comfortable making requests as they come up, that budgeting for it 
might not be necessary. She added that having made the first request for funding for the web 
redesign was something she had not seen or heard about prior, so maybe we have been slow on the 
take for making such requests. 
 
Ms. Perry asked if she could, for example, ask for funding for marketing their geo cashing event. 
 
Mr. Peterson said that Salida has been very interactive with marketing their wine/beer events. That 
the geo cashing campaign could be considered as falling under the same. A proposal would just 
have to be submitted for approval. 
 
Mr. Dvorak asked if we should earmark the budget for capital expenditures for marketing purposes. 
 
Mr. Peterson said he could do, but thinks it is our job to get people here first and added that there 

motion carried unanimously. 

motion carried unanimously. 



are other avenues to gain funds such as google grants. Vail Valley Foundation was very successful 
with donations via this manner.   
 
Mr. Holmes commented no matter how the visitor’s centers/chambers plan on capturing their 
audience, it should be measurable.  Scott is all about having everything measurable. 
 
Mr. Stroud added that marketing is doing what you can to bring people here and just as important is 
what you do with them once they are here. He said a good example of a visitor center that does this 
is the Taos visitor’s center, their interactive displays create the experience and invite the guest to 
return.  This is “sealing the deal”. 

Mr. Peterson said he will keep a running tally of BV and Salida’s earmark monies with online 
marketing, maybe not shift budget, but make sure both entities are represented equally. 

2016 Goals: Mr. Peterson reviewed his goals for 2016. 

Recommendations to BoCC for 4 new board members: 

Mr. Dvorak said that we had 7 candidates and six showed and recommendations would be 
submitted to the County Commissioners. Spots being filled were for Dick, Earle, Samantha and, 
Brandon’s term was up. Recommendations were for Megan Kingman, Craig Anderson, Justin Veltri 
and Amanda Krost. 

The board approved the meeting dates for 2016 as presented. 

There was discussion regarding the by-laws. 

Board member updates:   

Mr. Stroud said the mountain is doing great, ahead of budget and having a record year. Revenues 
are the highest they have ever been, 25% ahead.  Efforts seem to be working, the campaigns are 
working too.  They have given out 200 thousand worth of tickets to draw people here.  He added that 
last year, was going great and then the bottom fell out. As long as it keeps snowing, should be good. 

Ms. Roberts said the Community Awards was this Friday and ticket sales were going well. We've 
kept the ticket price down in order to attract some of our younger members, plus doing the event on 
a Friday night, opens up the weekend for skiing at Monarch, or spending time with family.  Nominees 
for the awards are from the public at large. 

Mr. Slate asked that we visit the AHRA home page and submit public comment about the 
Management Plan. This is the first round, with the deadline for public comment being, February 12. 

Mr. Ziminski said although they are closed, still getting calls for rooms. If you were to check out trip 
advisor, their still rated #1 

Kathi Perry.  Happy with new hires, Susan Wood and Megan Carpenter.  Feels like they are finally 
in good place with the new hires ideas and techie backgrounds. 

Happy with working with Gold Strike Productions via the videos they are currently doing.  Will host 
one business and one nonprofit for their video spots.  Kathi shared that she is having some trouble 
with getting folks to come on board with the idea. Kathi commented that she has her concerns about 
the pass being closed via Gunnison's side and along with Highway 24 sidewalks being worked on, 
sees potential for some missed opportunities via visitor traffic. 

Michael Varnum said they are staying busy 



Beatrice Price said there is a lot of new things going on, conferences and new festivals.   

Bill Dvorak said the Upper Arkansas Water Providers annual meeting will be on April 25-28 and will 
be held at the SteamPlant.  AROA is the main sponsor. 

Brandon Slate asked that he be removed from the committee for reviewing ideas related to the 
James Niehues Painting: 
 

Dick Ziminski made a motion to adjourn and Beatrice Price seconded the motion. 

Respectfully Submitted 

 

Lori Roberts, acting Secretary  


